
 CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705  MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

NOVEMBER 4, 2013 

6:30 P.M. 
                                                                              

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION  /  Dr. Robert McKibben / Daphne United Methodist  

 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / October 21, 2013     

                                                   Council Strategic Plan meeting minutes / October 28, 2013   

         
PROCLAMATION:   “America Recycles Day in Daphne” / November 16, 2013 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:    

 

1.       Rezoning:     Walter J. and Martin L. Pierce 
     Location:     Across from the intersection of U.S. Highway 90 

        and County Road 13; adjacent to the proposed 

        County Road 13 Interchange and Interstate 10 

             Present Zoning:    R-3, High Density Single Family Residential District 

             Requested Zoning:    B-2, General Business District 

               Recommendation:    Unanimous Favorable for Parcel 1 

        Unfavorable for Parcel 2 

               

         2.       Rezoning:         Christ the King Catholic Church / Main Campus 
             Location:     North of the intersection of Main Street 

        and Van Avenue and Southeast of the  

           Intersection of Guarisco and Trione Avenue  

             Present Zoning:           R-2, Medium Density Single Family 

         Residential District, R-3, High Density       

         Single Family Residential District 

   and B-2, General Business District 

             Requested Zoning:    B-1, Local Business District 

             Recommendation:    Unanimous Favorable 

 

 

ELECTION OF COUNCIL OFFICERS 

 

CHANGE THE NOVEMBER 11, 2013 WORK SESSION DUE TO VETERANS DAY 

 

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE - Conaway  

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

   C.     PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell  

   D.     CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  - Fry  

   E.      PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune     

             Review minutes / October 21
st
   

             Review Beautification minutes / October 2
nd

  

             Review Daphne Museum minutes / September 9
th

  

 

             MOTION:  To authorize the completion of the CR 64 sidewalk project, and begin the Lake Forest   

                                 sidewalk project starting on Lawson Road 

1



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                      NOVEMBER 4, 2013                              PAGE  2 

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones  

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

         Review minutes / August 28
th

  

         Review minutes / October 24
th

  

 

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis 

   D.  Library Board  - Lake  

   E.  Planning Commission – Scott     

         Review minutes / September 26
th

  

 

   F.  Recreation Board  -  LeJeune 

   G. Utility Board - Fry    

         Review minutes / May 29
th

, June 26
th

, July 31
st
 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report      
            MOTION:   Authorize the Mayor to approve the refinancing of bonds for Special Care Facilities                

                                 Financing Authority of the City of Daphne with the refinancing being completed by or  

                                 before December 31, 2013   

 

            MOTION:  Rescind appointment of Carol Frush to the Special Care Facilities Financing    

                               Authority  of the City of Daphne and appoint a new director 

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report 

     C.  Department Head Comments 

     D.  City Clerk Report 

           a.) Parade Permit / Connect Events & Chick-Fil-A of Daphne / Send Kids to Camp / February 8, 2014    

           b.) Parade Permit / Apollo’s Mystic Ladies / Mardi Gras / February 21, 2014 /  

                Rain Date February 27, 2014 

        c.) MOTION:   The City Council to recognizes the economic recession and the on-going impacts of the  

economic down-turn as it relates to businesses in the City of Daphne.  The City 

Council hereby recognizes “The 180 Day Promotional Period for Commercial and 

Retail Establishments” beginning on November 27, 2013 and ending May 26, 2014.  

This motion may be rescinded in the future in the event new Sign Provisions are 

adopted as part of the Land Use & Development Ordinance.    

                        

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS 

2



 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                 NOVEMBER 4, 2013                        PAGE  3 

 
 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

        2
ND 

READ    

a.)   Revisions to Employee Handbook / Chapters Two – Six. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-58 

 

b.)   Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) Grant: Turnout/Overlook/ 

          Drainage/Scenic Improvements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-59 

 

c.)   Amending Job Classification Schedule: Animal Shelter Technician. . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-60 

 

d.)   Authorization of Signatories. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-61  

 

 

 

1
ST 

READ 

  a.)   Rezoning:  Christ the King Catholic Church / Main Campus. . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-62 

 

  b.)   Rezoning:  Walter J. and Martin L. Pierce. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-63 

 

 

 9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 
 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN FRY      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

4



OCTOBER 21, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e1
 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Councilman Davis gave the invocation. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis, III. 

 

ABSENT:  Pat Rudicell. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; 

Jay Ross, City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; 

David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, 

Community Development Director; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Mike Hinson, Finance 

Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Captain Scott Taylor, 

Police Department; Angie Phillips, Revenue Officer; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs 

Manager; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee and Downtown Redevelopment 

Authority; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Larry Cook, BZA; Rebecca Trosclair, 

Beautification Committee; Selena Vaughn, Beautification Committee; Kevin Boucher, Attorney, 

Adams & Reese. 

 

Absent: Richard Merchant, Building Official; David Carpenter, Police Chief. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

October 7, 2013 Council meeting minutes 

There being no correction to the October 7, 2013 Council meeting minutes the minutes stand 

approved as written. 

 

October 14, 2013 Strategic Plan minutes 
There were no corrections to the October 14, 2013 Strategic Plan minutes, and the minutes stand 

approved as written. 

 

CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION:   
 

Mayor Haygood and the City Council recognized the students involved with the Student 

Government Association from Daphne High School, Bayside Academy and Spanish Fort High 

School. They are as follows:   

 

Brewer Ayres  Daphne High School  Treasurer 

Ashley Hudson Daphne High School  Vice-President 

Ethan McVay  Daphne High School  President 

5



OCTOBER 21, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e2
 

Christian Parke Daphne High School  Parliamentarian 

Kayla Warner  Daphne High School  Historian 

Brooke Bailey  Daphne High School  Secretary 

Keegan Cort  Bayside Academy  President 

Sarah Ezell  Bayside Academy  Secretary 

Katherine Ham Bayside Academy  Treasurer 

Bowen Spottswood Bayside Academy  Vice-President 

Ashlie Cline  Spanish Fort High School Class Officer 

Joseph East  Spanish Fort High School Class Officer 

Troy Marcus  Spanish Fort High School Class Officer 

Meredith Phillips Spanish Fort High School Class Officer 

Taylor Pierce  Spanish Fort High School Class Officer 

Mary Quinn  Spanish Fort High School Class Officer 

Hannah Vilela  Spanish Fort High School Class Officer 

 

PROCLAMATION:  Dyslexia Awareness Month  

 

Mayor Haygood read and presented the proclamation to Mrs. Sylvia Mueller, Braden 

Mueller and Hunter Oswalt. 

 

PRESENTATION:   The Lighthouse / Ms. Joanna Sheils 

 

Ms. Sheils handed out the budget for the Lighthouse, and said that due to the government 

shutdown the Lighthouse has not been funded, and the bills need to be paid.   In order to 

keep the doors open they are seeking help from the community.  She requested support 

from the city to help keep their doors open. 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to suspend the rules to consider a matter not 

on the agenda, a motion to appropriate additional funds for the Lighthouse in the 

amount of $1,000.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway                     Aye                                        Davis                  Aye 

Lake                            Aye                                        Scott                   Aye 

Fry                              Aye 

LeJeune                      Aye 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

6



OCTOBER 21, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e3
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to appropriate $1,000 in additional funds to the 

already appropriated $500 from Community Contributions for The Lighthouse, to be 

expedited at soon as possible.  Seconded by Councilman Davis.  

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

PRESENTATION:   Marine Corp League / Commandant Thomas Lane 

Commandant Lane is with the Jessie Andrews, Jr. Detachment of the Marine Corp League.  

He explained that the group donates to veteran organizations, and helps out in any way they 

can.  Their funding comes from participating in area festivals and events along with 

collecting money on roadways. 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The minutes for the October 14
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

Treasurers Report / September 30, 2013 

The balance ending September 30, 2013 is $16,442,249.11.  The total was down due to Road 

construction project payments that had been made. 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections / August 31, 2013 

Collections for August were $88,430.59 over monthly budgeted and $552,141.84 year to date 

over budget. 
 
Lodging Tax Collections, August 31, 2013  

Collections for August, 2013 were $52,427.99 which was up from August, 2012 - $50,417.73. 
 
Taste of the Eastern Shore 2013 Revenue Report 

The report for the 2013 event was $32,206.05 less the Band Loan ($5,000) netted $27,206.05 

paid to Daphne High School. 

 

PRESENTATION:   4
th

 Quarter Beautification Award / McDonald’s / Highway 181 / Ebrahim      

                                        Maghsoud 

 

The Award was presented to Ebrahim Maghsoud for McDonald’s on Woodrow Lane. 
               

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

The minutes for the October 7
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be the first 

Monday in November. 

7



OCTOBER 21, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e4
 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY  COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The minutes for the October 9
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The October 9
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The committee is working on an ordinance to 

consolidate the Business License ordinances, and two environmental ordinances.  The next 

meeting will be the second Wednesday in November. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The September 16
th

  Public Works Committee minutes and the September 4
th

 Beautification 

minutes are in the packet.  The committee met this afternoon, and there were 186 new garbage 

customers reported.  The next meeting will be November 18
th

.  

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

 The next meeting will be November 7
th

 at 6:00 p.m.  Mrs. Jones reported that there is a member 

whose term will expire in November, and council can chose to re-appoint or appoint a new 

member to the board. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to re-appoint Mr. Willie Robison to the Board of Zoning 

Adjustments.  Term to begin November 2013 and end November 2016.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

   

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting is Wednesday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be Monday at 6:00 p.m. Councilman Davis mentioned a report from a 

national research group on home building where Daphne is listed fifth in the top 10 list for home 

building markets. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The minutes for the September 12
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The Library received two grants 

one from Target for $2,000 (Children’s Activities) and one from LSTA for $25,000 (for 

Community Services concentrating on Health Issues).  The board adopted an improved dress 

code. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

8



OCTOBER 21, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e5
 

The Planning Commission will review the recommendations from the Sign Committee Thursday.  

She asked if council had any remarks concerning the recommendations to e-mail them to council 

President Scott and he will relay them to the commission.  The Planning Commission will make 

a recommendation to council, and it will be up to the council to adopt the recommendations. 

 

    F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

No report.  The next meeting will be November 13
th

 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

      G.   Utility Board – Fry 

There will be a budget meeting Tuesday, and the regular board meeting will be November 30
th

 at 

5:00 p.m. 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 
           a.)  Parade Permit / America Recycles Day Celebration  /  5K Run / 1 Mile Run / November 16, 2013 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Parade Permit for America Recycles Day Celebration / 

5K / 1 Mile Run / November 16, 2013.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

                                                      MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Mayor Haygood mentioned that the Special Care Facilities Financing Authority of the City of Daphne has 

approached him about approving refinancing of their bonds to take advantage of the good rates. This will not 

affect the city’s ratings.  He asked council to add this to the agenda in order to vote. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to add to the agenda a motion to authorize the Mayor to approve the refinancing 

for the Special Care Facilities Financing Authority of the City of Daphne.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye     LeJeune  Nay 

Lake   Aye                                                        Davis   Nay 

Fry   Aye     Scott   Aye 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Fry, Scott                                               NAY    LeJeune, Davis 

 

                                                                     MOTION FAILED 

 

Council President Scott asked that the motion be on the November 4, 2013 agenda, and to include in the 

motion that the refinancing had to be complete by December 31, 2013. 

 

 

9



OCTOBER 21, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e6
 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

No report.  Mr. Ross  introduced Kevin Boucher who will be assisting him with City of Daphne issues. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported Brown Bag by the Bay will be on Thursday from 

11:30 – 1:30.  Friday,  Saturday will be Mobile Bay Soccer Tournament with 98 teams and half of those 

are from out of town.   

 

Margret Thigpen – Civic Center Director -  there will be a comedy show by Chondra Pierce entitled Girl 

Talk on October 22
nd

.  

 

Adrienne Jones – Community Development Director – reported the Planning Commission meeting is 

Thursday. 

 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca Hayes –  
a.) MOTION: National League of Cities 2013 Congress of Cities Voting Delegate /  

                    November 13-16,  2013 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway appoint Councilman John Lake as the National League of 

Cities Congress of Cities Voting Delegate for the November 13-16, 2013 conference .  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mrs. Elaine Maxime – 105 Avon Circle East – spoke regarding no supervision in the exercise 

room at the Recreation Center.  She asked that the vacant position be filled. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

       RESOLUTIONS: 
a.)  Bid Award: 2014-A-S&R Boat, Motor & Trailer /  

      Dixie Sporting Goods, Inc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-52 

 

b.)  Acceptance of the Coastal Impact Assistance Coastal Impact  

      Assistance Programs (CIAP) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-53 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Resolutions 2013-52 and 2013-

53.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

                                      MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

10



OCTOBER 21, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e7
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolutions 2013-52 and 2013-53.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

                                     MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

       ORDINANCES: 

       2
ND

  READ  
a.) Regulating the Keeping of Dogs, Cats, Domesticated Animals,  

Livestock or Fowl within the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-57 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-57.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

                                    MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2013-57.  Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

 

                                        MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

ORDINANCE S 2013-58, 2013-59, 2013-60 and 2013-61 WERE MADE   1
ST

 

READ. 
 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilman Davis  was pleased to see the SGA membership at the meeting.  He mentioned that 

Daphne needs to embrace the growth explosion that is coming and not lose the integrity that 

made Daphne a great city. 

 

Councilman Fry attended the Honor Flight Legacy Reunion at Fort Whiting of the nine Honor 

Flight participants and their guardians and everyone that participated in the program. He said it 

was a tremendous event.  He thanked Dr. Barry Booth and others that were involved with the program. 

 

Councilman Lake mentioned again that the Recreation Department could partner with the US Sports 

Academy and use interns to help out. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway was glad to see the city recognize the youth leaders. 

11



OCTOBER 21, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 
 

P
ag

e8
 

Council President Scott said he enjoyed recognizing the youth leaders, and said they need to do it 

regularly.  He applauded the efforts of the Mayor and Richard Johnson for reaching out and finding a 

grant to improve Gator Alley.  The grant is a Transportation Alternative Program grant where they will be 

installing a parking lot at Gator Alley and paving it with pavers similar to May Day Park.  They will also 

be planting natural and decorative vegetation which will enhance the area. 

 

Mayor Haygood asked everyone to keep Councilman Rudicell’s mother in their prayers.  He mentioned 

the shooting in a Nevada school today, and said that this seems to be the norm now, and he does not like 

the direction the world is heading.  He said the Honor Flight Reunion was a great event, and they 

recognized the City of Daphne for their commitment.  Mayor Haygood thanked the current and past 

leaders for their commitment over the years.  He mentioned that Daphne won over Fairhope 35/13, and he 

brought home the trophy.  He recognized Ashley Campbell for all her hard work and commitment in 

acquiring the 2010 CIAP grant.  He thanked Councilman Fry and the Ordinance Committee’s work on the 

Animal Control ordinance. He wants Daphne to be pet friendly, and will work with a cooperative spirit 

with the citizens. 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNEDAT 

8:15 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                       Certification of Presiding Officer, 

         

                                                     

__________________________________  ________________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,      Ron Scott,  

City Clerk                                Council President    

   

12



OCTOBER 28, 2013 

STRATEGIC PLAN MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

4:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

Councilman Scott called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. 

 

COUNCIL PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Joe Davis. 

 

ABSENT:  John Lake, Robin LeJeune. 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson Assistant City Clerk; Margret Thigpen, 

Civic Center Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Jane Ellis, Mayors Assistant; Adrienne Jones, 

Community Development Director, Mike Hinson, Finance Director. 

 

ABSENT:  Mayor Haygood. 

 

1. PUB LIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

2. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

GOAL:   “Improve the city’s image as a business friendly environment and undertake measures to  

               attract and retain businesses.” 

 

Discussed: 

  

1. The progress the city has made in becoming business friendly by lowering the businesses license 

fees, extending the promotional advertising period and revising the sign provisions of the Land Use 

and Development Ordinance.  

2. Retaining businesses, and why they leave 

3. Marketing efforts to spotlight Daphne and what the city offers 

4. Putting a packet of information together for businesses 

5. Consulting the Baldwin County Economic Development Alliance to see what areas Daphne should 

seek to diversify the local economy (what types of businesses is the city lacking that citizens need or 

from which they would benefit), and what efforts the city could undertake to increase businesses. 

 

Councilman Davis commented on the list of topics assigning topics to departments and committees: 

 

1. Recreation / Recreation Board 

2. Economic Development / Industrial Development Board / Downtown Redevelopment Authority 

3. Infrastructure / Public Works 

4. Annexation / Mayor / Planning Commission 

5. City Management / Mayor, Staff 

6. Public Relations / Mayor, Staff 

7. Public Safety / Police Department / Chief Carpenter / Fire Department / Chief White  

8. Schools / S.E.E.D.S. 

9. Technology / Mayor  

10. Facilities / Building and Property Committee  

 

 

 

13



OCTOBER 28, 2013 

STRATEGIC PLAN MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

4:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

Committees Consider: 

 

1. What are the plan statement for one (1) year, three (3) years and five (5) years 

2. What are the objectives 

3. What are the needs 

4. What is the cost 

 

Compile information and develop a plan to reach objectives 

 

Council needs to decide if they need to bring someone in to help them in developing a strategic plan. 

 

Homework 

 

All committee chairs and members look at one, three and five years to see where they want to be, and 

what are the needs and wants. 

 

 

 

4. WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

There were no other necessary items to discuss. 

 

The next meeting is November 12
th 

after the Finance Committee meeting.  

The meeting adjourned at 6:34 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by                Certification of Presiding Officer 

 

 

_____________________________               ____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk   Ron Scott, Council President  

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

42



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:00 PM on October 21, 2013 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6      
          

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

 Meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 Committee Members Present: Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Councilman John Lake, Richard D. 

Johnson-Public Works Director, Michele T. Hanson-Administrative Assistant, Dorothy Morrison-

Daphne Beautification Committee. 

 

 Others Present: Councilman Pat Rudicell; Mike Hinson-Finance Director; Elaine Maxime, David 

Ringler, David Duiett, Cheri Forte, Amanda Mitchell, Jan Finney, Tom & Dolly Burak – Potter’s Mill 

POA 
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report for September 2013 and FY2013 were reviewed.  Robin would like a 

comparison from FY2011 to FY2013.  

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Reports for September 2013 and a FY2012 and FY2013 

YTD Summary were reviewed.  Richard commented that there was a sizeable increase from 

2012 to 2013, most of those due to vehicle transmissions, which is the biggest expense. He 

stated that He stated that he has discussed with the Mayor to purchase extended warranties on 

new vehicles to help offset these costs.    

C. Correspondence – Baldwin County Trailblazers recognized Daphne Public Works employee’s 

Malcolm Barge and Denise Penry for the design and installation of the new Eastern Shore 

Trail directional signs. 

D. Public Participation – Councilman LeJeune opened Public Participation at 5:08 p.m.  

a. Potter’s Mill Property Owners were present to discuss the brick retaining wall located at 

the entrance of Potter’s Mill (which is also on Lot 18) has started to crack and could 

become a hazard.  The POA would like some assistance from the city to fix the wall and 

protect the Oak tree. Richard suggested getting a cost estimate for the materials, which the 

POA would pay for, and the City could provide the labor.  Councilman Scott asked that 

the city attorney give legal advisement on this issue. 

b. Elaine Maxime (105 Avon Circle) wanted to encourage the council to move forward with 

the sidewalk projects and to have Lake Forest sidewalks installed as soon as funds are 

available. David Ringler thanked the committee for making sidewalks a priority and 

would like to see more than 1 mile of sidewalks done per year, even if it’s just done at the 

entrances of subdivisions to make them look more aesthetic.  

Public Participation closed at 5:24 p.m. 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes from September 16, 2013 meeting were reviewed. Motion by Councilwoman 

Conaway, seconded by Councilman Lake to approve minutes.  Motion carried. 

B. Mosquito Report – Richard reported that the mosquito spraying will be winding down with 

the cooler temperatures coming in.  Councilman LeJeune asked if the employee’s would be 

sent to different departments after the mosquito season.  Richard explained that the 2 

employee’s that mosquito spray work in the Grounds Department with Graham Cox taking on 

an administrative role during this season. After the season is over, they will go back to ground 

maintenance. 

C. Street Sweeper Reports for September 2013 were reviewed.  Richard stated that the sweeper is 

out all year round, but the load does become lighter after the fall season.  Councilman Scott 

stated that part of the yearly sweeping is to keep the debris out of the storm drains, etc. 

43



D. FY2014 City Sidewalk Proposal – Richard presented the members with a drawing of the 

proposed sidewalk plan for FY14.  The city council has appropriated $65,000 for this 

sidewalk project. He would like guidance from the committee on where to start first. He 

stated he liked Councilman Lake’s suggestion of placing a bronze mile marker in the concrete 

on 1/10 of a mile basis. He stated that he has a quote of a bronze cast that can be embedded 

into the concrete and will run $24.50 each with a purchase of 100 or more (100 would do 10 

miles of sidewalk).  These can also be retro fitted on existing sidewalks too. 

Motion by Councilman Scott, seconded by Councilwoman Conaway to favorably 

recommend to the council to complete the CR 64 project and then begin the Lake Forest 

project starting on Lawson Road. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Councilman Scott asked when will the parking lot at Bay Front be done. Richard stated 

possibly the 2nd week of November.   
  

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

No Report. 

 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report for September 2013 was reviewed.   

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) for September 2013 was reviewed, 

which is the end of the year final report; had a great month for recycling due to sheet metal 

being pulled out and set aside to be sold separately which netted almost $1,300. For FY14 we 

had 1675 tons of sellable recyclables vs. 1418 in 2012, which is an 18% increase. We had an 

income of $93,973.84 vs. $77,689.61 in 2012, which is a 21% increase with a 2.61% increase 

in new customers. Goal for next year is to break 2000 tons and break $112,500. 

C. Solid Waste New Customer Report for September 2013 was reviewed.  This month we added 

23 residential customers with 186 for the year. The Oak Ridge complex will have 140 new 

customers that will be added soon. 

D. Discussion: Trash to operate under Solid Waste Enterprise Fund/SW Rate Increase – Richard 

reviewed the option of adding Trash to the Enterprise Fund. Garbage and Recycling is run 

from the Enterprise fund, however Trash is not. The proposal is that Solid Waste, by definition 

is anything that is produced from a residential or commercial account, would move trash 

under the Enterprise fund keyed with a targeted step increase (current rate is $13.90 since 

2001), keeping us competitive with other municipalities, offering the same 3 services 

curbside.  The goal of this proposal would be to make Solid Waste revenue neutral. 

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from September 14, 2013 Meeting.  Minutes reviewed.   

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from October 2, 2013 Meeting were reviewed.  Dorothy thanked Richard & Denise 

for the field trip to Fairhope and all those that were involved with that project. She reported 

that she has met with the Mayor regarding the landscaping in the city and what 

designs/flowers to put out. He would like pictures of different landscaped areas to review. She 

has contacted several landscape companies for their assistance, but has not had any return her 

calls. 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. No Meeting Held. 

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

A. HMR: Jaye Robertson reported that Phase III of Lake Forest outside curb has been installed 

from Dunbar to Avon and cleaning up the area, installing sod. 

B. Volkert: No Report. 

44



 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting for November 18, 2013. 

B. Veteran’s Day Program at Patriot’s Point on Monday, November 11th at 10:00 a.m. 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 6:16 PM Motion made by Councilman Scott, seconded by Councilman Lake 

to adjourn the meeting.  Motion carried.  

45



District 1 
 

Dorothy Morrison, 
Chair 
Debbie Strahley 
 
District 4 
 

Selena Vaughn 
Tomasina Werner 
 
District 5 
 

David Dueitt 
Rebecca Trosclair 
Linda Williams 
 
District 6 
 

Elaine Maxime 
Hollie LeJeuune 
 
City Liaisons 
 

Marjorie Bellue 
Richard Johnson 
Dwayne Coley 
David McKelroy 
Denise Penry 
 

October  2nd Beautification Meeting& Tour of Fairhope & their Green House 

Market by the Bay   

Fairhope, Alabama             

 

 

Present: Fairhope‘s Mayor Kant, Mayor Haygood, Councilman Robin LeJeune , Councilman Pat Rudi-

cell, Councilman Joe Davis David Duet, Tomasina Werner, Selena Vaughn, Richard Johnson, Denise 

Penry, Margorie Bellue, Dwayne Cooley, Rebecca Trosclair, Hollie LeJeune, Debbie Strahley, Dorothy 

Morrison 

 

A HUGE THANK YOU to all of you who made the trip to Fairhope on a rainy day……. 

 

Council LeJeune hosted us to coffee, juice & Panera’s Pastry …….always a great way to start the 

day…… 

 

A- Gator Alley‘s projects will be moving ahead……We got the Grant…..A new division of the Park’s 

has placed Gator Alley back with Public Works……A schedule of park maintenance will be following 

this email….hope to see some progress by the end of the year…… 

  

B- Veteran’s Day celebration at Patriot’s Point …..Dr. Barry Booth has helped us get the Battlefield 

Cross statue for dedication on the Nov 11th at 10AM….. .our speaker will be the man honored as Veteran 

of the Year…..Jane Ellis is handling the details…..please plan to attend…. 

  

C-Treasurer’s report $15,000……It is a new year…..new policy says we do not keep unspent mon-

ey….next year we need to keep that in mind…… 

 

D-Chain Length fence can’t be fixed until after Oct 1…State of Alabama’s new financial year…… Rich-

ard will request a representative from ALDOT come to our meeting  for conversations for improved un-

derstanding……. 

Need for keeping I-10 interchange in pristine  maintenance 

Patriot’s Point work to begin soon …..colors of bricks may not match but in the end will be painted to 

resemble City Hall 

Malfunction Junction Master Plan …….[ aside information this has been on a top ten list since 2006]  

Redesign City entrances 

Request for Christmas hanging decorations on the east side of Hwy 98 as well as the west side. 

South entrance to the city on Main Street…....needs work ……grass seeds didn’t get the job done…….. 

Complete Hwy 64 ‘Island’ plantings, submit design again for Mayor’s approval…….. 

 

E-PW report- Richard reported that the work in Lake Forest VI is moving along near completion ….It is 

light up our world time…….. .bulb changing  help is needed again this year….please contact Margorie to 

find a time that fits your schedule…..Resurfacing North Main  is next ……. 

 

 

F- Sports Complex …needs design, approval and work orders…….. 

 

G- Crape Myrtles plan in progress 

 

H- Hwy 181 planting ….meet with ALDOT Representative in November……. 

 

I-DRA- No report 

 

J-Martin House Brochure pending 

46



K Beautification Award Suggestion….Mc Donald’s across from the Eastern Shore Shopping Center won, Low-

e’s, Zaxby’s, Medical Office among other suggestions…….Rebecca will let us know date and time for award 

ceremony 

 

L-Endowment  more information to come 

 

M- Mayor Kant spoke about when he was Public Works Director of Fairhope the rundown businesses had bro-

ken windows years ago…..how they started to reclaim Fairhope a bit at the time he praised Daphne for the trees 

along Hwy 98 and what an impact that has on people coming to both cities……..wish I had had a tape to record 

it all……..   

 

N- Next meeting November 6 Richard’s office 

 

We dismissed to the bus ……..thank you for the bus,….toured the green house and then a tour of Fair-

hope………….Jennifer Fiddler  Public Work Director for Fairhope met with us  to discuss the 11 greenhouses 

that they use to grow some of the plants…….they grow nothing from seeds…...plugs are used …they have a 

master plan with changes 5 times a year……..[we are planning on 4 times a year or maybe 2 in 2014 with lim-

ited beds involved]….. everyone in Public Works works on flowers when there is a push to get flowers 

changed…….Pulling out old plants is done one morning about 5AM….. planting  would be done the next night 

about 5AM …colors follow the seasons……..many beds have some kind of shrubs to make a base…that seems 

like a great idea would keep cost of flowers down some…….…It would have been nice to have a recorder to get 

all the information…… 

 

Richard drove us on a tour of Fairhope …..They have gone upscale with the pink for Breast Cancer Awareness 

Month…This is their first year…..including have the water in the fountain pink…..Huge bows on almost every 

lamppost… We need to be ready next year……………….…. 

    

47



48



49



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

50



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET • DAPHNE, AL 

AUGUST 28, 2013 • 5:30 P.M. 

 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 

1. Call To Order/Roll Call 

 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m.. 

 

Members Present: Casey Zito, Ken Balme, Dorothy Morrison, Debbie Strahley, Patricia 

Vanderpool 

 

Absent: Dayna Oldham, Tommie Conaway, Pat Rudicell, Doug Bailey 

 

2. Approval of Minutes:  

 

Motion: to approve the minutes from the June 26, 2013 meeting.  Moved by Dorothy 

Morrison, second by Ken Balme.  Carried unanimously. 

  

3. Nomination of New Vice-Chairman 

Ken Balme was nominated by Patricia Vanderpool for the position of Vice-Chairman, 

seconded by Debbie Strahley.  There was no discussion and the motion carried unanimously. 

4. Beautification Report: Dorothy Morrison 

 

Dorothy Morrison reported Dorothy reported that she and the Mayor took a ride around 

Old Daphne.  The Mayor was agreeable with Dorothy’s ideas and had some ideas of his 

own.  They plan to do this again in 6 months. 

 

Ms. Morrison also reported that the planter boxes had been completed.  The committee 

discussed stain colors for the boxes, deciding that the boxes should be stained white. 

 

Additionally, Ms. Morrison mentioned that the plaque by the fountain at City Hall is 

totally complete. 

 

 

 

 

 

51



5. Other Business 

Jubilee Festival Advertisement 

 

Ken Balme suggested that the DRA purchase a full page advertisement in the Courier and allow 

Daphne merchants to put coupons good for a discount or service during the Jubilee Festival.  The 

committee felt that this would get the merchants more involved in the Jubilee Festival and generate 

business.   

 

Motion: To spend up to approximately $1,000 to buy the full-page advertisement in the Courier.  

Moved by Dorothy Morrison, second by Patricia Vanderpool.  Carried unanimously. 

 

 

Ken and Debbie agreed to call on the merchants to market the advertisement opportunity to the 

downtown merchants.   

 

DRA Website 

 

Casey reported that she had met with John Beck of JMF Solutions and delivered information about 

what was needed for the Website. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 pm. 

 

52



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET • DAPHNE, AL 

OCTOBER 24, 2013 • 5:30 P.M. 

 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 

1. Call To Order/Roll Call 

 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.. 

 

Members Present: Casey Zito, Ken Balme, Dorothy Morrison, Doug Bailey, Debbie 

Strahley, Patricia Vanderpool 

 

Absent: Dayna Oldham, Tommie Conaway, Pat Rudicell 

 

Also Present: Sarah Toulson, Recording Secretary, Jane Ellis 

 

2. City Christmas Events: Jane Ellis, Executive Assistant to the Mayor 

Veteran’s Day Celebration 

Jane Ellis addressed the body, providing information about the upcoming Veteran’s Day 

program.  The Veteran’s Day program will be held on November 11 at 10:00 am at Patriot’s 

Point in Daphne and will include: 

 Dedication of a new bronze Soldier’s Cross statue,  

 The opportunity for citizens to bring worn and tattered U.S. flags for proper retirement, 

 Speaker Col. William E. Callender, Sr. 

Ms. Zito instructed Sarah Toulson to have the printed out flyer at the front desk of City Hall 

when they were ready for distribution. 

Christmas: “Light Up Daphne” Initiative 

Ms. Ellis also updated the body about the “Light Up Daphne” Initiative, explaining the long 

range goal for lighting up the downtown area for Christmas with an eventually planned live 

nativity scene and lit walkway.  She announced this year, the tentative date for the Open 

House and Lighting events would be November 22, and requested that the DRA members 

encourage the area businesses to participate by lighting their storefronts. 

Additionally, Ms. Ellis mentioned the Daphne Christmas parade, to be held on December 7 at 

11 am, as well as other possible events to be held around the city to promote businesses 

during the Christmas season. 

53



3. Treasurer’s Report: Doug Bailey 

 

Mr. Bailey gave the treasurer’s report, stating that the DRA currently had $94,416.06, after 

spending $1,100.00 for the Jubilee Festival coupon advertisement.   

 

Ms. Zito mentioned that there were no new applications for mini-grants, and suggested that 

the DRA consider putting out a press release to raise awareness of the opportunity. 

 

Mr. Balme gave a brief update on the Jubilee Festival advertisement, stating it was well 

received by the merchants and the public. 

 

Motion: to accept the treasurer’s report.  Moved by Debbie Strahley, second by Patrica 

Vanderpool.  Carried unanimously. 

 

4. Beautification Report: Dorothy Morrison 

 

Dorothy Morrison reported on the status of the planter boxes to be placed downtown, 

stating they should be ready mid-November.  The body discussed filling them with small 

holly bushes with lights for the Christmas season, and preparing them for debut during 

the “Light Up Daphne” event.  Ms. Morrison will inform the body through Ms. Toulson 

when the planters are ready in order to organize a group to prepare them. 

 

5. Resignation of Robert Nero 

 

The body regrets that Mr. Nero has been forced to resign his position with the DRA due 

to health issues, and wishes him a speedy recovery.   

 

Mr. Bailey mentioned that he knows an individual who might be a good replacement for 

Mr. Nero’s spot, and will report back to the body at the next meeting. 

 

6. Schedule Next Meeting 

 

The board decided to attempt to reserve a room at Southern Napa for the last meeting of 

2013, to be held on December 4, 2013.  Plans were discussed to invite members of the 

business community, the Council, and the Courier. 

 

7. Other Business 

 

Quorum 

54



 

Motion: to adjust quorum to be a “Majority of those present with a minimum of four.” 

Moved by Doug Bailey, second by Dorothy Morrison.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Website: 

 

Ms. Zito reported that the DRA website’s framework has been built, and the developer is 

ready for the DRA to see it.  Ms. Zito expressed hopes that they would be able to view 

the progress at the next meeting. 

 

Motion: To revise an item previously moved, to adjust the agreed amount of payment to 

JMF solutions for website development from $2,400.00 to $2,500.00.  Moved by Casey 

Zito, second by Doug Bailey.  Carried unanimously. 

 

Expansion of the Authority 

 

Ms. Zito reported according to previous research that the number of board members 

could be extended simply by appointing a new member. 

 

Downtown Businesses Maps and Inserts 

 

The body briefly discussed the need for reprinting the maps and inserts of the downtown 

area to replenish dwindling supplies. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:00 pm. 

 

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

93



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-58 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REORGANIZE CHAPTERS  

TWO, THREE, FOUR, FIVE, AND SIX OF THE 

CITY’S EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes that certain 

revisions to Chapters Two, Three, Four, Five, and Six of the City of Daphne Employee Handbook are 

necessary for the proper administration of said Handbook and the policies contained therein; 

 

 WHEREAS, revisions to Chapters Two, Three, Four, Five, and Six of the Employee Handbook 

will enable the City to more easily facilitate and administer policies in those chapters in order to benefit 

the health, safety, and welfare of its employees; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  REVISION TO CHAPTER 2 
 

 That all Sections of Chapter Two of the Employee Handbook be and are hereby revised as 

follows: 

 

CHAPTER 2 

 

 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 

2.1.  PURPOSE AND COVERAGE 

The purpose of this chapter is to identify those activities which are not consistent with the standards 

required of public employees and, thus, contrary to the best interests of the City of Daphne and the people 

it serves.  All individuals employed by the city are subject to these provisions. When further guidance is 

needed, employees should consult with the human resources director. 

 

2.2.  TYPES OF ACTIONS AND ACTIVITIES PROHIBITED 

The following types of actions and activities will be considered conflicts of interest and are prohibited by 

these policies and procedures. 

 

1. Speculative Investments.  Investments in real property or businesses in the immediate vicinity of 

a city project site which might appear to be speculative. 

 

2 Improper Influence.  The use of one’s position, or influence with the city to promote business 

with any company in which he has financial interest. 

 

3. Conflicting Moonlighting.  Involvement in a non-city business activity (“moonlighting”) which: 

(a) conflicts with or limits the city’s demands on the employee with respect to his availability 

for work or his performance on the job; or 

(b) reflects adversely on the city. 

94



 

Page 2 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

 

4.  Conflicting Contractual Activity.  The use of one’s position with the city to contract, or to 

influence contracting, with any business for personal gain or to benefit, friends, relatives, or 

associates. 

 

5. Interfering Political Activities.  Political activities which interfere, or might be construed as 

interfering, with an employee’s ability to perform his duties, or are in violation of city, state, 

and/or federal laws. 

 

6. Failure to Comply with Ethics Law.  Failure to comply with the Alabama Ethics Law, to include 

filing of required annual statements of economics interests, and any activity which is considered 

to be a violation of the ethics law. 

 

7. Solicitations.  Solicitation of any type or distribution of any literature during the employee’s 

working time.  Posting of cards, literature, notices, or other material of any kind on city bulletin 

boards or distributing such in city work areas at any time unless approved in advance by the 

human resources director. 

 

2.3.  VIOLATIONS. 

Violations of any part of this chapter, or its intent, may be grounds for disciplinary action, to include 

dismissal. 

 

 

SECTION II: REVISION TO CHAPTER 3 
 

 That all Sections of Chapter Three of the Employee Handbook be and are hereby revised as 

follows: 

 

CHAPTER 3 

 

 

CATEGORIES OF SERVICE AND EMPLOYMENT STATUS 

 

3.1.  CATEGORIES OF SERVICE 

Classified Service.   “Classified Service” employees are those individuals who have completed the 

probationary period defined in this Chapter, who are normally scheduled to work at least thirty (30) hours 

in their established workweek, and who work in those positions approved by the city council paid from 

city controlled funds, regardless of the sources of the revenues making up such funds, which are not in the 

unclassified, temporary, or part-time services.  Classified employees will be eligible to participate in all 

city provided benefits, including group insurance, retirement, vacation and sick leaves, and holiday pay. 

Classified service employees may challenge job-performance related demotions or dismissals as provided 

in Chapters 4 and 6 and are eligible to use the employment grievance and appeal rights provided in 

Chapter 8.   

 

Part-time Service.  “Part-Time Service” employees are those individuals who have completed the 

probationary period defined in this Chapter, who work in positions which are considered to be on-going 

in nature, and who are normally scheduled to work less than thirty (30) hours in their established 

workweek.  The incumbents of positions assigned to the part-time service will normally be scheduled to 

95



 

Page 3 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

work in each pay period. Part-time employees will not be eligible to participate in any city provided 

employee benefits, except as required by applicable state or federal law, provided however, that any part-

time employee who before 1996 was provided a city provided benefit will be allowed to continue such 

benefit.   Part-time service employees may challenge job-performance related demotions or dismissals as 

provided in Chapters 4 and 6 and are eligible to use the employment grievance and appeal rights provided 

in Chapter 8.   

 

Unclassified Service.  “Unclassified service” employees are those who serve at the pleasure of the 

appointing authority and whose “at-will” employment relationship with the City may terminate at any 

time, with or without notice or cause.  The unclassified service will include only those positions which are 

required by law, or approved by the city council, to be assigned to such service.  Unclassified service 

employees have no continued expectation of employment for a definite term and are not eligible to use 

the employment grievance and appeal rights provided to classified employees in Chapter 8 and may not 

challenge job-performance related demotions or dismissals as provided in Chapters 4 and 6.  Unclassified 

employees are eligible to participate in all city provided employee benefits, including group insurance, 

retirement, vacation and sick leave, and holiday pay. 

 

Temporary Service.   “Temporary service” employees are those employed on an “at-will” basis by the 

city, or contracted through a temporary services company, to perform special or emergency functions, 

temporary work, or to be substitutes or temporary replacements for unclassified, classified, or part-time 

service employees who are on approved leave.  Employment in the temporary service will not normally 

exceed six (6) consecutive months in duration, although  the mayor may in his discretion extend this 

period for up to six (6) additional months.  Individuals hired for the temporary service may work either a 

full or part-time work day.   Temporary individuals may not be transferred directly to the unclassified, 

classified, or part-time service, but may apply for vacancies in such categories of service as provided in 

Chapter 4.  Temporary employees may be separated with or without cause or notice at the discretion of 

their appointing authority and are not eligible to use the employment grievance and appeal rights provided 

to classified employees in Chapter 8 and may not challenge job-performance related demotions or 

dismissals as provided in Chapters 4 and 6.  Temporary service individuals generally will not be eligible 

to participate in any city provided employee benefits, except as provided by applicable federal or state 

law. 

 

3.2.  EMPLOYMENT STATUS (CLASSIFIED AND PART-TIME EMPLOYEES) 

Probationary Status.   Initially, each individual hired for the classified or part-time service will be placed 

in a probationary status, until he has successfully completed the city’s established probationary period.  A 

probationary status employee may be separated by his appointing authority without a hearing and without 

recourse at any time during his probationary period. A probationary status employee will not be eligible 

to file an appeal of his separation or any disciplinary action taken against him or to file a grievance as 

provided by the city’s grievance procedure. 

 

Regular Status.  Upon completion of the probationary period, a probationary status employee who has 

demonstrated acceptable performance and who is approved for regular status by the appointing authority 

will be afforded regular status.  A regular status employee may, subject to the provisions of these policies 

and procedures, remain in his position so long as there is a need for his position, the position is funded 

and his performance and conduct is acceptable.   

 

 

 

96



 

Page 4 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

3.3.  PROBATIONARY PERIOD 

Purpose.  Every individual employed in the classified and part-time service must satisfactorily complete 

the city’s established probationary period. The probationary period is considered an integral part of the 

training, evaluation, and discipline process for employees.  The probationary period will be utilized for 

closely observing the employee’s work, for providing detailed feedback on employee work behavior, 

obtaining the most effective employee performance, or separating an employee who is unable to 

acceptably perform their job. 

 

Duration.  The city’s probationary period is generally established as six (6) months.  However, this period 

will be extended as needed to ensure that those individuals who are required to complete minimum 

standards training or other certification for their jobs, serve at least six months in a probationary status 

after completion of the minimum standards requirements or other certification.  For employees who are 

placed on probation due to performance or work behavior problems, the probationary period is generally 

three (3) months. 

 

Evaluation.   Normally, the performance of a probationary status employee will be evaluated two times 

during their six (6) month probationary period.  Such evaluations will occur during the employee’s third 

and sixth months of service.  The performance of an employee who is placed on probation due to 

performance or work behavior problems will be evaluated every month of their three (3) month 

probationary period.  Additional evaluations may occur if the probationary period is extended or if it is 

deemed necessary as determined by the department head, in coordination with the human resources 

director. 

 

Procedure for Designation as a Regular Status Employee.  During the final month of an employee’s 

probationary period, the department head will complete a written evaluation of the employee’s work.  If 

the employee’s service has been satisfactory, the department head’s evaluation will include a statement 

that the employee should be retained as a regular status classified or part-time employee, as the case may 

be.  If the employee receives an unacceptable evaluation, the evaluation will include a statement that the 

individual should not be retained.  Normally, if an employee is to be terminated, he will be given at least 

seven (7) calendar days notice.  However, when approved by the mayor, the employee may be given a 

shorter notice. All employees who successfully complete the probationary period will be notified in 

writing by the human resources director of their completion of the probationary period and designation as 

regular status employees in the classified or part-time service as the case may be. 

 

3.4.  CONTINUOUS SERVICE RULES 

Non-Continuous Service – Temporary and Part-Time Employees. Employment in the Temporary Service 

and in the Part-Time Service will not count as continuous years of service with the city, if an individual is 

appointed at a later date to a position in the classified or unclassified service, regardless of the length of 

any break in service. 

 

Continuous Service - Unclassified Employees.  Employment in the unclassified service will count as 

continuous years of service, if an individual is later employed in the classified service and there is no 

more than a ninety (90) calendar day break in his service with the city. 

 

Continuous Service - Classified Employees.  Employment in the classified service will count as 

continuous years of service with the city, if an individual is later employed in the unclassified or part-time 

service and there is no more than a ninety (90) calendar day break in his service with the city. 

 

97



 

Page 5 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

3.5.  CHANGE IN SERVICE CATEGORIES 

Classified to Unclassified to Classified Service.  If an individual was a regular status classified employee 

at the time of his appointment to the unclassified service, he may be reappointed as a regular status 

classified employee, if an available position for which he is qualified exists and he was not separated as a 

result of inadequate job performance or for disciplinary reasons. 

 

Unclassified to Classified Service.  If the individual was not a regular status classified employee at the 

time of his appointment to the unclassified service, he will not be automatically entitled to appointment to 

the classified service, but may apply for a vacant classified position along with other applicants, and, if 

selected, may be appointed. 

 

 

SECTION III: REVISION TO CHAPTER 4 
 

 That all Sections of Chapter Four of the Employee Handbook be and are hereby revised as 

follows, and that the Transitional Duty Policy added by Ordinance 2012-1 be repealed and replaced with 

the Section 4.8. Transitional Duty After Occupational Injury set out below: 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 4 

 

 

STAFFING 

 

4.1.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

General.  Staffing actions will be initiated only for vacant positions that have been authorized by the city 

council.  Vacant positions will be filled by the appropriate appointing authority. 

The city council or the mayor, as established by Alabama law or city ordinance, is designated as the 

appointing authority for all unclassified positions. 

The mayor, or his designated representative, is the appointing authority for all vacancies in the classified, 

part-time and temporary service. 

 

Contracted Service.  At the discretion of the mayor, any vacant position may be filled through the services 

of a temporary service company. 

 

Exceptions to these Guidelines.  The mayor may make exceptions to these guidelines in those situations 

where a regular status classified employee’s (a) position is being abolished and he would otherwise be 

laid off, or (b) performance, as demonstrated through performance evaluations and/or reports, indicates he 

is not qualified to render satisfactory service in his current position.  In those cases, the mayor may, at his 

discretion, reassign him to any available position of equal or lower pay in the city’s compensation plan, if 

such reassignment is considered to be in the best interest of the city.  Such reassignment may be made 

without advertising the vacancy and complying with the staffing requirements of this chapter. 

 

Employee Consideration.  When a vacancy occurs in the unclassified classified or part-time service, any 

employee, regardless of his employment category or status of service, may apply for the vacancy along 

with other applicants from outside the city’s employment.  While the city will strive to give preference to 

qualified regular status classified and part-time employees, it reserves the right to select any individual 

98



 

Page 6 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

that is considered to be best for the position. No consideration will be given to whether the requested 

reassignment to a vacancy would result in a transfer, promotion, or demotion of the employee. 

 

Fraud on Application.  Any person who has fraudulently secured his appointment will be removed in 

accordance with these policies and procedures and will not thereafter be eligible for consideration for any 

position covered by the city’s personnel system. 

 

Non-Discrimination.  All staffing actions will be made without regard to age, sex, national origin, 

religion, color, race, political affiliation, or disability, except when any such factor constitutes a bona fide 

occupational qualification.  The city will provide requested reasonable accommodations for a qualified 

applicant with identified or reasonably identifiable substantially limiting physical or mental impairments 

during the staffing process. 

 

 

4.2. RECRUITING GUIDELINES 

Approved and Funded.  Recruiting actions will be initiated only for vacancies that have been authorized 

and funded by the city council.  If the position has not been authorized in the current year budget, the 

human resources director will submit the request to the mayor and the city council for approval and 

funding. 

 

Acceptance of Applications.  No applications will be accepted by the city, unless the city is actively 

seeking applications and it is filed with the human resources director in accordance with the requirements 

of the vacancy notice.   

 

Recruiting Responsibilities.  When a vacancy exists in the unclassified, classified, part-time, or temporary 

service, the appointing authority, or his designated representative, will notify the human resources 

director.  The human resources director will initiate, or cause to be initiated, such actions as he deems 

necessary to adequately advertise the vacancy. 

 

Current Job Description.  The human resources director will ensure that the position has a current 

approved job description on file and has been assigned to the city’s compensation plan.  If the approved 

job description is not current and/or the job has not been assigned to the city compensation plan, the 

human resources director will initiate action to have a current job description written and a pay grade 

level assigned in accordance with chapter 10 of these policies and procedures. 

 

Internal Notice of  Vacancy.  All vacant unclassified, classified and part-time service positions will be 

advertised in-house to allow interested employees an opportunity to apply for them. 

 

External Advertisement.  Employment opportunities, other than those which are to be filled through a 

temporary services company, will normally be advertised through appropriate media and employee 

notices to ensure adequate advertisement in the recruiting area. 

 

Content of Advertisement.  All advertisements and notices will provide a description of the employment 

opportunity to include: necessary qualifications, established pay level, deadline for applying, date and 

time of any qualifying test or examination that will be given, and where applications may be picked up 

and returned.  All advertisements will contain the statement:  “The City of Daphne is an Equal 

Opportunity Employer.” 

 

99



 

Page 7 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

Duration of Advertisement.  All advertisements and notices will remain open for receipt of applications 

for at least fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the notice, unless a shorter time is approved by 

the mayor. 

 

Application Forms.  All applications will be made on forms provided by the city.  Applications will be 

submitted to the human resources director in accordance with the job opportunity announcement. 

 

 

4.3 ELIGIBILITY LISTS 

Purpose.  Eligibility lists of qualified applicants will be established  by the human resources director 

as needed to ensure qualified individuals are available to fill vacancies in a timely manner.  When an 

eligibility list is established, it will be used to fill subsequent vacancies in comparable jobs. A Police 

department and Fire department list may be used for a period up to twelve (12) months after effective 

date. For all other city departments and jobs, no eligibility list will be valid for more than six (6) months 

after its effective date. 

 

Criteria for Testing and Ranking.  Any criteria for testing or examining applicants to determine their job-

related qualifications and subsequent ranking on an eligibility list will be established by the human 

resources director, in conjunction with the appointing authority and the appropriate department head. 

 

Refusal to Examine or Place on List Permitted.  The city may refuse to examine or, after examination, 

place on an eligibility list the name of any applicant who: 

(a) is found to lack any of the established job-related requirements for the job for which he is 

applying; 

(b) has been convicted of any crime involving moral turpitude or any infamous or disgraceful 

conduct; 

(c) has been dismissed from employment for delinquency or misconduct, or has intentionally 

made a false statement of any material fact or attempted to practice any deception or fraud in 

his application or examination. 

 

Ranking of Applications.  After the closing date, as established in the vacancy or job opportunity 

announcement for receipt of applications from interested individuals, the human resources director will 

ensure that each applicant is evaluated and ranked based upon his possession of the job-related 

qualifications.  The resulting rankings will be compiled as an eligibility list for that job and will be used 

by the human resources director to refer names of individuals to the appointing authority for further 

consideration.  Each list will contain the names of all eligible individuals who have submitted 

applications and who have been determined to be qualified and eligible for the job. 

 

4.4.  SELECTIONS 

Selections Tentative.  All selections for the unclassified, classified, or part-time service will be tentative, 

subject to the individual meeting the following criteria for the position, as required: 

(a) successfully undergoing a police records check; 

(b) successfully undergoing a background investigation; 

(c) successfully demonstrating, through a record check, that he will be accepted by the city’s 

insurance carrier under preferred rates; 

(d) successfully being issued a bond; 

(e) successfully meeting any standards or certifications as required by law and/or the city; 

100



 

Page 8 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

(f) successfully meeting any other job related requirements established by the appointing 

authority at the time of selection; and 

(g) determination that he will be able to perform the essential functions established for the 

position (or that reasonable accommodation can be made.) 

 

Selection Process For Classified and Part-time Service Positions.  Normally, selections to fill vacancies in 

the classified and part-time services will be made from the top five (5) names from the appropriate 

eligibility list that are referred to the appointing authority for consideration by the human resources 

director.  The names will be listed alphabetically rather than in ranked order.  If none of the referred 

individuals are acceptable to the appointing authority, he will notify the human resources director in 

writing as to the reason(s) for his rejection of the referred names and request additional names be 

forwarded for his consideration.  Interviews will be held by the appointing authority, or his designated 

representative, with the top qualified individuals whose names are referred to him for consideration.  An 

interview form, as prepared by the human resources director in coordination with the appointing 

authority, will be completed by the interviewing individual for each interview. Appropriate inquiries to 

the applicant’s former employers and other references will be made by the appointing authority, or his 

designated representative, as required.  If agreeable to the applicant, an inquiry may also be made to his 

present employer. 

 

Notice of Non-Selection.  After all interviews have been completed, the appointing authority will notify 

the human resources director of his selection.  Any applicant who is interviewed and not selected will be 

notified in writing of his non-selection by the human resources director. 

 

Selection Process For Unclassified Service Positions.  After the closing date for receipt of applications, 

the human resources director will screen each application to determine if the applicant meets the 

qualifications established by the appointing authority for the position.  The applications of all eligible and 

qualified applicants will be submitted to the appointing authority for further consideration.  If none of the 

applicants are acceptable to the appointing authority, the human resources director will take action to re-

advertise the vacancy. 

 

Selection Process For Temporary Service Positions.  Selections to fill positions in the temporary service 

will be made by the appointing authority, or his designated representative, from a list of names furnished 

by the human resources director.  Interviews may be held, if determined by an appointing authority to be 

necessary. 

 

4.5.  EMPLOYMENT OFFERS 

Written Notification.  All employment offers to individuals who have been tentatively selected for vacant 

positions in the unclassified, classified and part-time service will be made in writing to the individuals by 

the human resources director.  No individual may consider that an offer of any type has been made to him 

unless he has been so notified. 

 

Notification Content.  The human resources director’s written notification of an offer will inform the 

applicant that the offer and his continued employment will be contingent upon his completion of a 

medical examination and meeting the following requirements in the time period established by the 

appointing authority, and that, if he does not satisfy such requirements within the time period, he may be 

separated.  The notice must state the offer is contingent upon a determination that he: 

(a) has successfully undergone a background investigation, when required; 

101



 

Page 9 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

(b) has successfully demonstrated through a driving record check that he will be accepted by the 

city’s insurance carrier under preferred rates, when driving is required because of his duties; 

(c) has successfully been issued a bond, when required because of his duties; 

(d) has successfully met any standards or certifications as required by law and/or the city; 

(e) has successfully met any other job related requirements established at the time of the offer; 

and 

(f) is able to perform the essential functions established for this position. 

 

Post-Offer Medical Exam.  The selected individual will complete a medical exam prior to starting work.  

The human resources director will schedule a medical examination with a city designated physician for 

the individual, at the city’s expense. 

 

Starting Work (New Hire).  Upon approval of the appointing authority, and following the medical 

examination,  a newly-hired individual may be allowed to start work prior to meeting the requirements 

listed above for the period of time required for the above-requirements to be met. 

  . 

Effective Date of Internal Applicant Reassignment.  If a city employee is selected for the position, the 

appointing authority, the human resources director, the employee’s current department head, and the new 

department head will coordinate the effective date of the employee’s reassignment. 

 

4.6.  PROBATIONARY PERIOD FOLLOWING EMPLOYEE REASSIGNMENTS 

General.  An employee who is reassigned to a new position will serve a probationary period of six (6) 

months in his new position similar to the probationary period for new employees described in Chapter 3.  

During the probationary period, the employee’s performance will be evaluated in accordance with the 

provisions of Chapter 5. 

 

Separation During Probationary Period For Unacceptable Performance. If the employee’s performance 

during the probationary period is documented to be inadequate, he may be separated. If an individual is to 

be separated due to unacceptable performance during his probationary period, he will be given at least 

seven (7) calendar days notice prior to his separation.  The appointing authority may give the employee 

less notice if he considers that it is in the best interest of the city to do so. A copy of the separation notice 

will be provided the human resources director. 

 

Reassignment During Probationary Period For Unacceptable Performance.  In lieu of separation, the 

appointing authority may in his discretion reassign the employee with unacceptable performance  to 

another vacant position of the same or lower pay grade, if the appointing authority concludes that the 

employee is qualified to perform the required duties of the vacant position. However, an employee who 

was previously demoted to a lower position because his performance was not acceptable and whose 

performance is still unacceptable in his new position will not be considered for reassignment, but will be 

separated. 

 

4.7. TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENTS 

Purpose.  Any employee may, at the discretion of his appointing authority, be placed on temporary 

assignment in another position for such purposes as training, accomplishing special projects, filling 

temporary vacancies, or other similar reasons. 

 

102



 

Page 10 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

Duration.  Normally, a temporary assignment will not exceed ninety (90) continuous calendar days.  

However, the appointing authority may extend this period for up to ninety (90) additional calendar days at 

his discretion. 

 

Pay.  If an employee is temporarily assigned to a position that is equal or lower in pay level than his 

regular position, his pay will not change.  If the employee is temporarily assigned to a position that is in a 

higher pay level than his regular position, his pay will not change during the first fifteen (15) working 

days of the temporary assignment.  If the employee remains in the higher rated position for more than 

fifteen (15) continuously scheduled work days, his pay will be adjusted to the entry level of pay for the 

temporary job or paid at least two (2) steps higher than his regular pay for the remainder of the 

assignment.  Upon completion of the temporary assignment, the employee’s pay will revert back to his 

regular pay. 

 

4.8. ALTERNATIVE DUTY AFTER INJURY 

Under appropriate circumstances, the City may provide temporary alternative duty job assignments for 

employees who are temporarily unable to perform their regular job assignments as result of injuries 

incurred on or off the job.  The City does not create alternative duty jobs for any other reason.  The sole 

purpose of this policy is to provide temporary alternative duty jobs for employees who are recovering 

from injuries and to facilitate return to regular job assignments.  An employee assigned to a transitional 

duty position is not presumed by the City to be handicapped or disabled for the purposes of any other law 

or statute. 

 

No employee has a right to an alternative duty job assignment or to the continuation of any alternative 

duty job assignment. The City's decision to offer an alternative duty job assignment is within the City's 

discretion and will be made on a case-by-case basis.  The City's decision will be made only when the City 

has sufficient specific information regarding the employee's functional abilities and work restrictions 

arising from the injury and the anticipated duration of any restrictions. 

 

The City will consider the facts of each particular case, including but not limited to the following: 

 

 The nature and duration of the employee's medical restrictions; 

 The employee's qualifications; and 

 The feasibility of creating a temporary light duty job that is within the employee's 

restrictions and that the employee is qualified to perform.  

 

If requested, an employee must provide a written authorization for the City’s Human Resources 

Department to contact the employee's treating doctor(s) to obtain complete information about the 

employee's functional abilities and work restrictions and the anticipated duration of any restrictions.  If 

deemed necessary by the City, the employee may be required to undergo an independent medical 

examination and work capacity evaluation. 

 

The time period for any alternative duty assignment will begin once an employee has been deemed 

eligible to return to modified and/or light duty by the employee’s medical provider and an available 

alternative position has been located by the Human Resources Director and the employee’s Department 

Head.  The duration of any alternative duty job assignment will be in the sole discretion of the City, but 

no alternative duty assignment may last longer than 180 days (six months) from the date the employee 

begins the alternative duty assignment or Maximum Medical Improvement (“MMI”), whichever first 

occurs. As the only exception to this rule, any time spent on any leave of absence for any reason not 

related to the injury will not be counted toward the alternative duty assignment time period.  An 

103



 

Page 11 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

employee’s alternative duty assignment may be discontinued at any time with or without notice.  No 

permanent or long-term alternative duty job will be created or otherwise made available to employees 

under this policy. 

 

An employee's refusal to accept an alternative duty job assignment will be considered a "voluntarily quit" 

unless the employee is on an approved medical leave covered byt eh City’s FMLA policy.  If an 

employee is on approved FMLA medical leave, the employee's refusal to accept an alternative duty job 

after the expiration of FMLA leave will be considered a voluntary quit. 

 

If the alternative position has the same or higher pay scale as the employee’s pre-injury job, the 

employee’s pay rate will not change, and he will be compensated at the normal rate of pay for the regular 

job. If the pay scale for the alternative position is less than the employee’s pre-injury rate of pay, the 

employee will be paid the rate of pay for the alternative position plus 66 2/3% of the difference between 

the normal rate of pay for the alternative position and the employee’s pre-injury wage. 

 

An employee assigned to an alternative duty job must immediately notify his or her supervisor if the 

employee experiences any physical or mental difficulty performing the alternative duty job assignment.  

Upon notification, the supervisor must immediately relieve the employee from further duty and inform 

the Human Resources Director, who will arrange for further consultation with the treating physician. 

 

If an employee is unable to return to work in the original position after 180 days (six months) working in 

the alternative duty assignment and has not yet reached MMI, the City may permit a leave of absence or 

implement an incapacity separation, depending on the circumstances.  If an employee has reached MMI 

and is unable to return to work in the original position due to substantially limiting physical or mental 

impairments, the City will attempt to determine if there is a reasonable accommodation which would 

permit the employee to continue employment with the City in the employee’s original job or in another 

vacant regular position. 

 

4.9. DISCIPLINARY DEMOTION 

Any employee may demoted to a lower position for violation of city rules or policies or for the good of 

the city as a disciplinary measure, either in the first instance of misconduct or following progressive 

discipline outlined in Chapter 7. Demotion for disciplinary reasons is distinguished from demotion for 

unacceptable job performance or due to abolition of position, as discussed in the following sections.  

Regular status classified or part-time employees may appeal disciplinary dismissals as provided in 

Chapter 8.  

 

4.10. INVOLUNTARY DEMOTION – POSITION ABOLISHED 

An employee may be demoted to a vacant position in the same category of service for which he is 

qualified in a lower pay level, if his position is being abolished and he would otherwise be laid off.  If a 

vacancy is not available, the employee will be separated under the separation guidelines contained in 

Chapter 6.  An employee demoted in lieu of layoff will not be required to serve a probationary period in 

the new position. 

 

4.11. INVOLUNTARY DEMOTION – UNSATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE 

Overview.  An employee may be demoted in lieu of separation to a position in the same category of 

service for which he is qualified in a lower pay level, when his performance appraisal reports demonstrate 

unsatisfactory performance. A demotion made in accordance with the guidelines of this section will be 

104



 

Page 12 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

considered an administrative action rather than a disciplinary action.  Such demotions may be made only 

when there is a position available to which the employee may be demoted.  If a vacancy is not available, 

the employee will be separated as provided in Chapter 6 

 

Recommendation For Demotion.  If after counseling and monitoring as provided in Chapter 5, an 

employee’s performance continues to be unacceptable after any period established for him to demonstrate 

acceptable performance and the department head determines that the employee should be demoted in lieu 

of separation, the department head will submit a written request to the mayor requesting that action be 

taken to demote the employee for unacceptable job performance. 

 

Mayor’s Review and Decision.  If the mayor approves the department head’s request, he will notify the 

employee in writing of his intention to demote the employee.  The notification will also inform the 

employee that he has a right, within three (3) calendar days of receiving the notification, to request in 

writing an informal hearing before the mayor to present his response and any other pertinent information 

concerning the proposed action.  If the employee does not request an informal hearing, or if the mayor 

decides to continue with the demotion after conducting the informal hearing, the mayor will notify the 

employee in writing of demotion. 

 

Appeal.  The mayor’s notice of demotion for unacceptable job performance will also state the employee’s 

right to file within three (3) calendar days of the date of his demotion a written request for a hearing 

before the city council.  The city council’s review of the demotion shall be limited to a determination of 

whether the mayor followed these demotion guidelines.  If the procedures were followed, the demotion 

will be upheld. 

 

Probationary Period.  An employee demoted for unsatisfactory performance to a lower position will serve 

a probationary period in the new position as outlined above. 

 

CHAPTER 5 

 

 

EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 

5.1. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Requirement & Purposes.  The job performance of all unclassified, classified, and part-time employees 

will be evaluated periodically in accordance with the city’s approved performance appraisal system.  The 

appraisal system will be job-related and will provide each employee and his supervisors documented 

information concerning the employee’s performance level in his job. 

 

Performance appraisal results will be used  to determine an employee’s qualifications for promotion, 

training and development assistance to meet employee needs, layoffs when Reductions in Force (RIFs) 

are required, the performance level of new and reassigned probationary employees, and whether an 

employee will improve their job performance or work behavior to an acceptable level or face potential 

demotion or separation for failure to correct performance shortcomings.   

 

Evaluators. The mayor or another individual designated by the mayor will evaluate those employees 

assigned to the unclassified service.  The  department head, or an individual approved by the mayor, will 

evaluate all probationary status and all regular status classified and part-time employees under the 

department head’s supervision. 

105



 

Page 13 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

 

Timing of Formal Evaluations.  Unclassified and regular status classified full-time and part-time 

employees will be evaluated at least once annually.  Evaluations of probationary status employees will be 

conducted during the third and sixth month of the probationary period. 

 

Additional Evaluations.  Evaluators may conduct performance evaluations of employees at any time 

deemed necessary to address less than satisfactory job performance or, with respect to probationary 

employees, in the event of an extension of the probationary period. 

 

Written Report.  A written appraisal report will be prepared in accordance with the city performance 

appraisal system.  The written report will be discussed with the employee and both he and the rating 

individual will sign the appraisal form.  The original of the completed appraisal report will be filed in the 

human resources director’s office.  An employee’s refusal to sign the report or to cooperate in the 

appraisal process is considered insubordination and grounds for disciplinary action. 

 

5.2 PERFORMANCE COUNSELING & MONITORING (CLASSIFIED AND PART-TIME 

SERVICE EMPLOYEES) 

 

Counseling. Prior to making any recommendation of demotion or separation of any regular status 

employee in the classified service or part-time service for unsatisfactory job performance, the employee’s 

department head, or his designated representative, must counsel the employee concerning his 

unacceptable performance.  The department head must identify the performance shortcomings, the 

action(s) the employee must take to improve, and the length of time to improve.  The employee must also 

be warned that if his performance does not improve he may be demoted or dismissed. A written record of 

each counseling session will be prepared by the counseling individual and must be signed by both the 

counseling individual and the employee.  A copy will be provided to the employee and a copy will be 

filed in the human resources director's office. An employee’s refusal to sign the counseling session record 

or to cooperate in the counseling process is considered insubordination and grounds for disciplinary 

action. 

 

Monitoring. The employee’s performance will be monitored by his department head and the human 

resources director during the established period to determine if it is improving as required.  Written 

feedback will be provided by the department head to the employee. 

 

Additional Appraisal. After an employee has been counseled for unacceptable job performance, the 

department head will also conduct such performance appraisals as required by the city’s performance 

appraisal system to document the employee’s performance level. 

 

Consequences For Failure to Improve.  If the department head concludes the employee has not 

sufficiently improved his performance after notice and opportunity to improve, the department head may 

recommend to the mayor that the employee be demoted or dismissed, as provided in Chapter 4 and 

Chapter 6. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

106



 

Page 14 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

SECTION V: REVISION TO CHAPTER 6 
 

 That all Sections of Chapter Six of the Employee Handbook be and are hereby revised as follows: 

 

CHAPTER 6 

 

 

SEPARATIONS 

 

6.1.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Types of  Separations.  All separations of individuals from employment with the city will be designated 

as one of the following types: resignation; retirement; death; incapacity; reduction-in-force (RIF); or 

dismissal. 

 

Processing Separations.  At the time of separation or prior to payment of any final compensation, all 

records, assets, and other items of city property in the employee’s custody will be returned to city control.  

Certification to this effect will be made by the employee and his department head before any final 

payment is paid to the employee.  A copy of such certification will be filed in the human resources 

director’s office.  Any indebtedness owed the city by the individual will be withheld from his final 

compensation, unless waived by the city council.  At separation, each employee will be informed by the 

human resources director of any rights and/or benefits for which he may be eligible. 

 

6.2.  RESIGNATION 

Notice.  Any employee may voluntarily resign his position by submitting written notification to the 

mayor, the human resources director, or his department head.  The notification must state the reason(s) 

and the effective date for the resignation. Classified and part-time employees should submit their 

notifications as far in advance as possible but no later than fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the 

effective date of the resignation.  Unclassified employees should submit their notifications at least thirty 

(30) calendar days prior to the effective date of the resignation. 

 

Failure to Give Notice.  Failure to comply with the notification requirement will be cause for denying an 

employee payment for his unused vacation leave, unless specifically approved by the mayor in writing.  

Such failure may also be cause for denying the individual future employment with the city. 

 

Withdrawal.  If an employee wishes to withdraw his resignation, then prior to the effective date of the 

resignation, the employee must submit a written request to withdraw the resignation to the mayor, the 

human resources director, or his department head.  The mayor will make the decision to approve the 

withdrawal request, which approval must be documented in writing.  If the request to withdraw the 

resignation is not approved, the employee will be separated on the effective date of the resignation.  If the 

request to withdraw the resignation is approved, the employee will suffer no loss of service, benefits, 

entitlement, and/or pay. 

 

Use of Sick Leave During Notice of Resignation Period.  No employee will be authorized to use or 

receive sick leave pay during the period after the employee submits notice of resignation, unless the 

employee’s request to use sick leave was approved prior to the submission of the notice of resignation or 

is documented by a note from a physician. 

 

107



 

Page 15 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

No Call, No Show Absence as Resignation.  Any absence from work for a period of three (3) consecutive 

working days without providing notice required by Chapter 9 may be considered as a voluntary 

resignation by an employee. 

 

6.3.  RETIREMENT 

Whenever an employee meets the eligibility requirements set forth in the city’s retirement program, he 

may elect to retire and receive benefits earned under the provisions of the retirement program.  An 

employee who wishes to retire should notify the human resources director in writing at least sixty (60) 

days prior to the requested effective date. 

 

6.4.  DEATH 

Separation will be effective as of the date of death.  All compensation due the employee as of that date 

will be paid to the estate of the employee, except for such sums that must be paid by law.  Any 

indebtedness owed to the city will be withheld from the individual’s final compensation, unless waived 

by the city council. 

 

6.5.  INCAPACITY 

General.  Any employee may be separated (i) when he cannot perform the essential functions of his job 

because of a substantially limiting physical or mental impairment and (ii) neither the city nor the 

employee has identified a reasonable accommodation which would enable the employee to adequately 

accomplish his essential job functions.  Such accommodation may include job restructuring or 

reassignment.  

 

Medical Evidence.  All incapacity separations will be supported by medical evidence provided by a 

medical authority that is acceptable to the city.  The city may require an opinion by a second authority, if 

deemed necessary. 

 

Impairment Due To On-The-Job Injury or Illness.  If the substantially limiting physical or mental 

impairment is the result of a job related injury or illness, and the employee is receiving wage-replacement 

worker’s compensation benefits, he may be placed on leave without pay status for up to six months before 

being separated, if his medical prognosis indicates that he may recover sufficiently to return to work.  

However, separation may occur at any time within the first six months of the impairment, if a 

determination is made by a competent medical authority that the employee’s prognosis indicates the 

incapacity is long-term and he will not be able to perform the duties of his job with reasonable 

accommodation. In any event, separation may occur after the first six months of the impairment if the 

employee is not capable of returning to work and performing the duties of his job at that time.  Separation 

action may be initiated by either the employee or the city.  The mayor must approve any separation 

initiate prior to the end of the  six (6) month period. 

 

Non-Job-Related Impairment.   If the substantially limiting physical or mental impairment is not the result 

of a job related injury or illness, incapacity separation will become effective only after an employee’s 

accrued leaves with pay have been exhausted and the expiration of any leave without pay granted the 

employee in accordance with the guidelines of Chapter 9. 

 

Retirement Option.  An employee who is eligible for retirement will be entitled to retire and receive 

retirement benefits in accordance with the city’s retirement program in lieu of an incapacity separation. 

108



 

Page 16 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

6.6.  REDUCTION IN FORCE (RIF) 

Guidelines.  Any employee may be separated by being laid off through a RIF.  RIF actions may be 

approved as part of a general cost reduction program or when a particular position is no longer needed.  In 

a general RIF the city council will, in coordination with the mayor, establish guidelines to be used in 

identifying those positions to be eliminated and the individuals in such positions to be laid off. 

 

Priority of Service Category and Status.  Individuals assigned to jobs that have been identified to be 

included in a RIF will be selected for separation based upon their service category, employment status, 

performance, years of service, and any other criteria as established by the mayor and city council.  

Normally, RIF action will be taken in the following order: 

1) temporary service employees; 

2) probationary status employees in the part-time service; 

3) probationary status employees in the classified service; 

4) regular status employees in the part-time service; 

5) regular status employee in the classified service. 

 

Priority Within Service Category and Status.  Normally, employees within a particular service category 

and employment status will be selected for separation based upon: (i)their performance level as indicated 

by written performance evaluations; (ii) their length of service in the particular service category; and (iii) 

the needs of  the city. 

 

Consideration for Reassignment.  When a regular status classified employee is scheduled to be laid off, he 

may be considered for reassignment to any vacant position of equal or lower grade in the classified or 

part-time service for which he is qualified. 

 

Notification of Effective Date.  Normally, employees in the classified and part-time services will be 

notified in writing by the mayor at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the effective date of their layoff.  

Normally, employees in the unclassified service will be notified in writing by the mayor at least fourteen 

(14) calendar days prior to the effective date of their layoff.  Temporary service employees will be given 

as much notice as possible.  A copy of all RIF notices will be filed in the human resources director’s 

office. 

 

Reemployment List. Regular status employees in the classified service who are laid off will be placed on 

a preferred list for hire and will have recall rights for vacancies for which they qualify for one (1) year 

from the effective date of their layoff. 

 

6.7.  DISCIPLINARY DISMISSAL 

Any employee may be dismissed for violation of city rules or policies or for the good of the city as a 

disciplinary measure, either in the first instance of misconduct or following progressive discipline 

outlined in Chapter 7. Dismissal for disciplinary reasons is distinguished from dismissal for unacceptable 

job performance or failure to maintain qualification required for licensure, insurance, or certifications, as 

discussed in the following sections.  Regular status classified or part-time employees may appeal 

disciplinary dismissals as provided in Chapter 8.  

 

6.8.  DISMISSAL DUE TO LICENSURE, INSURANCE, OR CERTIFICATION LAPSES 

Dismissal for Failure to Qualify for Licensure, Insurance or Certification Required for Continued 

Employment. The mayor may dismiss any employee in the following situations: 

109



 

Page 17 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

 

1) When and the city has verified information that the employee is unacceptable for employee 

honesty or fidelity bonds required by the city for the position occupied by the employee; or 

 

2) When and the city has verified information that the employee has lost, has been unable to acquire, 

or has failed to maintain certifications required by the city for the position occupied by the 

employee. 

 

3) When the city has verified information that the driving license privileges of an employee who is 

required to drive to do his job have been suspended or revoked, or restricted in such a manner that 

the employee is rendered incapable of performing his job without violating such restrictions; or 

 

4) When and the city has verified information that the employee is considered by the city’s 

insurance carrier to be an unacceptable, or high risk for insurance and if allowed to operate a 

vehicle on the city’s behalf, either would not be covered with liability coverage, would cause a 

cancellation of the city’s policy, would cause an increase in the city’s insurance premium, or 

would prevent the city from receiving a preferred rate for which it would otherwise qualify. 

 

Opportunity to Cure Employee Insurability Issue. When the city receives information from the city’s 

general liability carrier that an employee is excluded from having driving privileges and is otherwise 

uninsurable, the human resources director shall contact the employee and the employee’s supervisor 

immediately upon notification. The employee’s driving privileges shall immediately be suspended until 

such time as the employee is able to provide additional information to the liability carrier, through human 

resources, in the form of a motor vehicle record, accident report, or any other documentation so that the 

liability carrier may cause a final determination to be made on the employee’s insurability.  Employees 

must provide this information as quickly as possible and not to exceed 10 days from notification. 

 

Notice and Appeal. The mayor must provide the employee a written notice of dismissal based on one or 

more of these reasons as well as his right to file within three (3) calendar days of the date of his dismissal 

a written request for a hearing before the city council.  The city council’s review of the dismissal shall be 

limited to a determination of whether the mayor followed these dismissal guidelines.  If the procedures 

were followed, the dismissal will be upheld. 

 

6.9.  DISMISSAL FOR UNACCEPTABLE JOB PERFORMANCE 

Recommendation For Dismissal.  If after counseling monitoring as provided in Chapter 5, an employee’s 

performance continues to be unacceptable after the period established for him to demonstrate acceptable 

performance and the department head determines that the employee should be dismissed, the department 

head will submit a written request to the mayor requesting that action be taken to separate the employee 

for unacceptable job performance. 

 

Mayor’s Review and Decision.  If the mayor approves the department head’s request, he will notify the 

employee in writing of his intention to dismiss the employee.  The notification will also inform the 

employee that he has a right, within three (3) calendar days of receiving the notification, to request in 

writing an informal hearing before the mayor to present his response and any other pertinent information 

concerning the proposed action.  If the employee does not request an informal hearing, or if the mayor 

decides to continue with the dismissal after conducting the informal hearing, the mayor will notify the 

employee in writing of dismissal. 

 

110



 

Page 18 of 18 
ORDINANCE 2013-58                    REVISIONS TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

 

Appeal.  The mayor’s notice of dismissal for unacceptable job performance will also state the employee’s 

right to file within three (3) calendar days of the date of his dismissal a written request for a hearing 

before the city council.  The city council’s review of the dismissal shall be limited to a determination of 

whether the mayor followed these dismissal guidelines.  If the procedures were followed, the dismissal 

will be upheld. 

 

 

SECTION VI: REPEALER 

 

 That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, 

Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

SECTION VII: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason 

held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a 

separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions hereof. 

 

SECTION VIII: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ____  DAY OF ________, 2013. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

DANE HAYGOOD 

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES 

CITY CLERK 

111



11 North Water Street ● Suite 23200 (36602) ● P.O. Box 1348  ● Mobile, Alabama 36633-1348 ●  (251) 433.3234 ● Fax (251) 438.7733 

www.adamsandreese.com

Attorneys at Law
ALABAMA

FLORIDA 

LOUISIANA 

MISSISSIPPI 

SOUTH CAROLINA

TENNESSEE

TEXAS 

WASHINGTON, DC

Randall Scott Hetrick 
Email scott.hetrick@arlaw.com
Direct (251) 650-0852
E-Fax (251) 650-2060

MEMORANDUM

TO: Daphne City Council, Ordinance Committee

FROM: Scott Hetrick

RE: Daphne Employee Handbook Revisions
Chapters 2-6

DATE: September 27, 2013
______________________________________________________________________________

I’m writing to discuss the draft ordinances to be submitted at the October 9th Ordinance 
Committee meeting.  These ordinances will revise Chapters 2 through 6 of the  Employee 
Handbook.  I plan to attend the committee meeting but also am available for questions about 
these ordinances prior to the meeting by email or phone.

When I was asked in the fall of 2012 to review and make recommendations about the 
City’s Employee Handbook, I was tasked with accomplishing several goals.  My first priority 
was to make sure the policies in the Handbook were legally compliant, legally sufficient, and 
legally consistent with applicable state and federal law governing the City’s relationship with its 
employees, primarily, and its relationship with non-employees to the extent  such relationships 
impacted the employer-employee relationship.  My second goal involved ensuring the policies 
were internally consistent with each other, meaning that I needed to look for conflict between 
what rules or standards or guidance may be set by a policy or policies as compared to another 
policy or other policies.  As a third priority, I was asked to attempt to simplify the policies as 
much as possible, within the constraints of the first two goals, to make each policy and the entire 
handbook more “user friendly” for employees responsible for following the policies and 
managers responsible for implementing the policies.

Chapter 2 (Conflicts of Interest)
No substantive changes were made to this chapter.  All changes are wholly stylistic for 

consistency with other “user friendly” style changes.

Chapter 3 (Categories of Service and Employment Status)
No substantive changes were made to this chapter.  Most of the changes are simply to 

reorganize the sections, eliminate redundant or unnecessary material, and to provide some 
necessary cross-references to policies in other chapters.

Chapter 4 (Staffing)
There were four substantive changes to this chapter.  First, references to determining the 

level of an employee’s pay after hire or reassignment were deleted since those issues are covered 
by Chapter 10, extensive parts of which were recently revised by Ordinance 2013-25.  I’m still 
working on revising Chapter 10 and integrating those changes.  Second, for consistency of 
treatment, I included a process for involuntary demotions for poor job performance identical to 

112



September 19, 2013
Page 2 of 2

the process for involuntary separations for poor job performance in Chapter 6.  Third, I set out an 
explicit policy governing demotions for disciplinary purposes which may be appealed under the 
same grievance process in Chapter 8 as disciplinary terminations. Finally, I revised and renamed 
the transitional duty assignment policy to shorten it, eliminate redundancies with other policies, 
and to incorporate language more closely tracking how the policy has been implemented. The 
remainder of the changes are stylistic.

Chapter 5 (Employee Performance Evaluation)
The revision of this chapter resulted in two sections, with the first section consisting of  

essentially all the existing policies of this chapter presented in a reorganized format and the 
second section comprising a performance counseling and monitoring policy lifted from the 
existing Chapter 6.  The reason for moving that policy to this chapter is that the same process 
should be followed prior to a poor job performance demotion, and it is a natural fit for this 
chapter.  With the addition of this policy, it also made sense to rename the chapter.

Chapter 6 (Separations)
Most of the changes in this chapter were stylistic.  In the “resignation” section, at the 

request of the HR department, I included a new policy concerning use of sick leave in the period 
prior to an effective date of resignation.  I also revised the policy governing withdrawal of a 
resignation (i) to require the employee to request withdrawal in writing just the notice to resign 
should be in writing, to avoid any controversy, (ii) to make clear that the mayor makes the 
decision whether to approve the request to withdraw, and (iii) to require the approval to be in 
writing to again avoid controversy over whether the approval occurred. Also at the request of the 
HR department, conveying requests from department heads, I revised the section concerning 
when an absence from work will be considered a voluntary quit.  The existing policy states that 
any “unauthorized and unjustified absence for five consecutive working days” may be 
considered a voluntary quit, but in practice it has only been those absences that are without 
notice, i.e., no call, no show absences. The change in terminology more accurately reflects this 
practice.  I also shortened the period of time as requested by HR and the department heads, 
because in light of the technology changes since 1995, it is considerably easier for employees to 
comply with the notice requirements; in addition, this period of time is consistent with the 
majority of employers in our area.  Also as discussed above, I moved to Chapter 5 the section 
concerning performance counseling and monitoring which was previously in this chapter.

113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



ORDINANCE 2013-59  
Lodging Tax Appropriation TAP:  Gator Alley - 

Turnout/Overlook/Drainage/Scenic Improvements 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on 
September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHERE AS, the City has been awarded the new Transportation Alternatives 
Program (TAP) Grant through the Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) 
in the amount of $320,075.46 with an 80/20 cost share ration; and 
 
WHERE AS, the Transportation Enhancement (TE) Program funds may be used to 
correct ADA deficiencies associated with existing pedestrian infrastructure; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $ 92,857 from the Lodging Tax Fund are appropriated 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget for the City’s 20% match for the project 
herein described.   
 
Activity                                                Total Cost                                Grant Portion                          City’s Portion 
 
Initial Survey & Design (9.5%)            $ 13,819.00                             $           0.00                            $ 13,819.00 
 
Construction Cost Including 
Property Acquisition                            $370,457.71                            $296,366.17 (80%)                $74,091.54 (20%) 
 
Const. Material Testing (2%)*             $    2,910.00                            $    2,328.00 (80%)                 $     582.00 (20%) 
 
Const. Engineering – CE&I (15%)*     $  21,819.00                            $  17,455.20 (80%)                 $  4,363.80 (20%) 
 
Totals                                                    $409,005.71                            $316,149.37 (77.3%)              $ 92,856.34 (22.7%) 
 
*Based on  Actual Construction Cost – minus land acquisition ($370,457.71 - $225,000.00 = $145,458.71) 
 
Note: Grant amount is published as at a slightly higher $320,075.46 

 
FURTHERMORE, the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents 
required in order for the City of Daphne to participate in such project. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
        
   
                                                                    ________________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

147



Ordinance 2014-60 
 

An Ordinance Amending Job Classification Schedule: 
Animal Shelter Technician to Administrative Technician 

 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City 
of Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to insure that the City’s Job Classification Schedule remains 
current, Human Resources was charged with coordinating an annual review of a 
percentage of all jobs in order to determine whether revisions to the Job 
Classification Schedule are warranted; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 requires that subsequent revisions or 
amendments to the Job Classification Schedule be approved by the City Council.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that:  
1) the other classifications for technicians are a Grade 9 therefore the Animal 
Shelter technician position was recommended to increase from a Grade 7 to a 
Grade 9, and title change to Administrative Technician by the Mayor, and 
2) there will be an annual savings of $3,265 due to current salary of the employee 
who retired was higher than the new hire salary will be, and  
3) is approved and the following amendment is hereby incorporated into the City of 
Daphne Job Classification Schedule. 
   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this ______ day of ___________, 2013. 
 
      
      
     __________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
      
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

148



 ORDINANCE NO. 2013-61 
 
An Ordinance setting forth the authorization of certain City Officials as designated 
signatories on various accounts of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  The following Officers of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be and hereby are 
officially designated as the appropriate and authorized signatories on the various City 
accounts of the City of Daphne, Alabama: 
 
    Mayor    Dane Haygood 
    Interim Finance Director  Michael V. Hinson 
    Councilmember   John L. Lake 
    Councilmember    Pat Rudicell 
     
 
SECTION 2:  All checks, drafts, and all other financial transfers shall be signed by two (2) 
of the above-designated signatories. 
 
SECTION 3:  Any ordinance or resolution previously adopted which in any way conflicts 
with this Ordinance is hereby deemed repealed in its entirety with the exclusion of 
Resolution 2013-37 which prescribes signatories for the Confiscated Funds account. 
 
SECTION 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any part of this 
Ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
declaration shall not affect the remaining parts. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
THIS _______day of _______________, 2013. 
 
        
 
 
       ____________________ 
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________                             
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

149



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-62 

 

                              

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located  

Along Main Street, South of Trione Avenue & South of Dryer Avenue 

Also Known as Christ the King Catholic Church Main Campus 

 

          WHEREAS, Christ the King Catholic Church, as the owner of certain real property located 

within the City of Daphne, Alabama, has requested that said property be rezoned from B-2, General 

Business,  R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential and R-3, High Density Single Family 

Residential to B-1, Local Business; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is north of the intersection of Van Avenue and Main Street, and more 

particularly described as follows and illustrated as shown in Exhibit B attached hereto:  
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - (ACROSS FROM MAIN CAMPUS ALONG MAIN STREET): 

 
Commence at the Northwest corner of Section 20, Township 5 South, Range 2 East, St. 

Stephens Meridian, and run thence South 925 feet;  Thence run East 25 feet to an iron pin 

marker on the East right of way of Main Street for the Point of Beginning of the property 

herein described;  Thence run N-89°-59'-40"-E, 149.81 feet to an iron pin marker;  Thence run 

N-00°-04'-23"-E, 100.14 feet to an iron pin marker;  thence run S-89°-58'-53"eE. 500.33 feet to 

an iron pin marker;  Thence run S-00°-07'-10"-E,  326.69 feet to an iron pin marker;  Thence 

run S-89°-34'-17"-W, 330.01 feet to an iron pin marker;  Thence run S-89°-50'-58"-W, 320.95 

feet to an iron pin marker on the East right of way of Main Street; Thence run North along said 

East right of way of Main Street, 230.0 feet to the Point of Beginning.  Containing 4.57 acres, 

more or less, and lies in the Northwest Quarter of Section 20, Township 5 South, Range 2 East, 

Baldwin County, Alabama. 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - (ACROSS FROM MAIN CAMPUS ALONG TRIONE AVENUE): 

 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 20, Township 5 South, Range 2 East, Baldwin 

County, Alabama, Thence South, along the West line of said Section 20, for 680.29 feet; 

Thence S-89°-40'-35"-E, leaving the West line of said Section 20, for 188.35 feet to a point on 

the South right of way line of Trione Avenue, (40-foot public R\W), and the Point of 

Beginning of the parcel herein described;  Thence S-89°-40'-35"-E, along the South right of 

way line  of said Trione Avenue, for 499.68 feet to a point at the intersection of the South right 

of way line of said Trione Avenue with the East right of way line of Guarisco Street, (50-foot 

public R\W);  Thence N-00°-24'-33"-E, along the East right of way line of said Guarisco 

Street, for 20.11 feet;  Thence S-89°-32'-35"-E, leaving the East right of way line of said 

Guarisco Street, for 309.93 feet;  Thence S-00°-10'-32"-W for 329.26 feet;  Thence N-89°-47'-

49"-W for 330.02 feet; Thence N-00°-19'-58"-E for 165.79 feet;  Thence N-89°-38'-17"-W for 

482.53 feet;  Thence N-01°-08'-06"-E for 144.44 feet to the Point of Beginning. Said parcel 

lying and being in the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 20, Township 5 

South, Range 2 East, Baldwin County, Alabama, and containing 4.086 acres, more or less. 

 

150



ORDINANCE 2013-62                             REZONE:  CHRIST THE KING MAIN CAMPUS                PAGE   2 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - (MAIN CAMPUS): 

 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of Section 19, Township 5 South, Range 2 East, Baldwin County, 

Alabama, Thence South, along the East line of said Section 19, for 1030.87 feet;  Thence N-89°-24'-57"-W, 

leaving the East line of said Section 19, for 26.09 feet to a point at the intersection of the West right of way 

line of Old U.S. Highway 98, a.k.a. Main Street, (50-foot public R\W), with the South right of way line of 

Dryer Avenue, (34-foot public R\W), and the Point of Beginning of the parcel herein described;  Thence S-

00°-24'-23"-W, along the West right of way line of said Main Street, for 596.20 feet to a point at the 

intersection of the West right of way line of Main Street with the North right of way line of College Avenue, 

(40-foot public R\W); Thence S-89°-58'-17"-W, along the North right of way line of said College Avenue, 

for 525.73 feet to a point at the intersection of the North right of way line of said College Avenue with the 

East right of way line of 6th Street, (40-foot public R\W);  Thence N-00°-56'-49"-E, along the East right of 

way line of said 6th Street, for 617.00 feet to a point at the intersection of the East right of way line of said 

6th Street with the South right of way line of aforesaid Dryer Avenue;  Thence S-83°-02'-49"-E, along the 

South right of way line of said Dryer Avenue, for 136.75 feet;  Thence S-89°-24'-57"-E, along the South 

right of way line of said Dryer Avenue, for 384.03 to the Point of Beginning.  Said parcel lying in the 

Northeast quarter of Section 19, Township 5 South, Range 2 East, Baldwin County, Alabama, and 

containing 7.214 acres, more or less. 
 

 
WHEREAS, on September 26, 2013, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne 

considered said request and set forth a favorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of 

Daphne that property be rezoned B-1, General Business; and, 

 

                WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on 

November 4, 2013 concerning the requested rezoning; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

recommendation of the Planning Commission, deems that said application for rezoning of the above 

described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens 

of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 
 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from B-2, General Business, R-2, Medium 

Density Single Family Residential and R-3, High Density Single Family Residential to B-1, Local 

Business; and the zoning map shall be amended to reflect the said zoning change.    

 

151



ORDINANCE 2013- 62                            REZONE:  CHRIST THE KING MAIN CAMPUS                PAGE   3 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

          All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in so 

far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

          The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, or 

part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, 

paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

                This Ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne 

and publication as required by law. 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA this _______ day of ______________, 2013. 

 

 

 

     CITY OF DAPHNE 

                                                       A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

 

 

        _______________________________ 

        Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

152



153



154



155



156



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-63 

                              

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located  

North of the Intersection of County Road 13 and Highway 90 

Also Known as Walter J. & Martin L. Pierce 

 

          WHEREAS, Walter J. & Martin L. Pierce, as the owners of certain real property located within 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, have requested that said property be rezoned from R-3, High Density 

Single Family Residential to B-2, General Business; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is north of the intersection of Intersection of County Road 13 and 

Highway 90 abutting the proposed I-10 interchange, and more particularly described as follows and 

illustrated as shown in Exhibit B attached hereto:  
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

Parcel 1:   
Commencing at a 4” x 4” concrete monument found on the present right of way line 

of interstate 10 as shown on the right of way map of state highway project number I-

10-1 (19) (said monument offset 300 feet of and perpendicular to centerline of said 

project at station 544+69.28): thence run north 8240’31” east a distance of 2006.55 

feet to the point of beginning of the property herein described:  thence run north 

6930’30” east.  301.08 feet:  thence run south 0028’49” west.  785.36 feet:  thence 

run south 8945’57” west.  147.32 feet:  thence run north 3519’04” west.  353.00 

feet:  thence run north 0508’29” west.  230.10 feet:  thence run north 1536’10” 

east.  84.72 feet:  thence run north 4204’15” east.  110.11 feet:  to the point of 

beginning and containing 5.20 acres more or less (226,377.3 sq. Ft.) 

 

Parcel 2: 

 
Commencing at a 4” x 4”  concrete monument found on the present south right of 

way line of interstate 10 as shown on the right of way map of state highway project 

number I-10-1 (19) (said monument offset 300 feet of and perpendicular to 

centerline of said project at station 544+69.28):  thence run south 7504’44” east a 

distance of 1657.69 feet to an iron axel and the point of beginning of the property 

herein described:  thence run north 0030’16” east.  324.73 feet:  thence run south 

3506’49” east.  4.96 feet: thence run south 1918’20” east.  103.76 feet:  thence run 

south 3446’31” east.  100.00 feet:  thence run south 5111’02” east.  104.25 feet:  

thence run south 3506’49” east.  90.84 feet:  thence run south 8945’57” west.  

230.53 feet:  to the point of beginning and containing 0.73 acres more or less.  

(31715.3 sq. Ft.). 

 
WHEREAS, on September 26, 2013, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne 

considered said request and set forth a favorable recommendation that Parcel 1  be rezoned B-2, 

General Business and an unfavorable recommendation to rezone Parcel 2 as B-2, General Business to 

the City Council of the City of Daphne; 
       

 

                WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on 

November 4, 2013 concerning the requested rezoning; and, 

 

 

157



 
ORDINANCE 2013-63                                      REZONE:    PIERCE                                  PAGE   2 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the recommendations of the Planning Commission deemed that said application for 

rezoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 
 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from R-3, High Density Single Family 

Residential to B-2, General Business; and the zoning map shall be amended to reflect the said zoning 

change.    

 
SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

          All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in so far 

as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

          The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, or 

part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, 

paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

                This Ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne 

and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA this _______ day of ______________, 2013. 

 

 

     CITY OF DAPHNE 

                                                       A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

 

        _______________________________ 

        Dane Haygood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

158



159



160


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes
	Council Strategic Plan Minutes
	Proclamation - Recycle Day
	Public Hearing Info - Pierce - CTK
	Report of Standing Committees
	Public Works Committee Minutes
	Beautification Committee Minutes
	Museum Minutes
	Report of Special Boards
	DRA - August 28th Minutes
	DRA Minutes - October 24
	Planning Commission Minutes September 26 2013 
	Utility Board Minutes - MAY 2013
	Utility Minutes - June 2013
	Utility Board Minutes - July 2013
	Report of Officers
	Special Care Facilities Refinancing Info
	Parade Permit - Chik fil A
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2013-58 - ORD - Revised Employee Handbook - Chapters 2 3 4 5 6 - clean 10-13-13)
	2013-59 - ORD - TAP - Appropriation of Funds Gator Alley Trailhead-2014
	2013-60 - ORD - FINAL - 2014 Job Reclassifications-Animal Shelter Tech
	2013-61 - ORD - Signature Authority-2014
	2013-62 - ORD - REZONE - CHRIST THE KING
	Backup to 2013-62 - ORD
	2013-63 - ORD - REZONE - PIERCE
	Backup to 2013-63



